
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Rachael Calvert, Democratic Services (01254) 380136 
Email:  rachael.calvert@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Friday, 24 February 2023 

Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Audit Committee 
 
Monday, 6 March 2023 at 5.00 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Dominik Allen 
Vice-Chair:  Councillor Peter Edwards 
 
Councillors Noordad Aziz, Bernard Dawson MBE, Carole Haythornthwaite and June Harrison 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on the 28th November 
2023 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Recommended – That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 
record.  
 

3.   Audit Plan 2022/23 Progress Update  (Pages 11 - 16) 
 

To inform members of the Audit Reports issued during the period November 2022 
– January 2023 and bring to the attention of the Committee what the key issues 
were. 
 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022-2023 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

4.   Follow Ups Update  (Pages 17 - 20) 
 

To inform members of the outcome of routine follow-ups following the previously 
agreed action plans for completed Audit Reports. The follow-ups detailed within 
this report are those carried out during the period July 2022 – February 2023. 

 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

5.   Annual Internal Audit Plan 2023/24  (Pages 21 - 38) 
 

To inform Audit Committee about the Internal Audit Plan for the financial year 
2023/24 and request that Audit Committee approves the proposed Internal Audit 
Plan for 2023/24 and grants delegate authority to the Head of Audit & 
Investigations to make any minor amendments to the Audit Plan proposed by 
Corporate Management Team without the need for the Internal Audit Plan to be 
re-approved. 
 
Recommended – That the Audit Committee approve the Internal Audit  Plan 
for the financial year 2023/24; and 

 
- That the Audit Committee grant delegated authority to 

the Head of Audit & Investigations to make any minor 
amendments to the Audit Plan proposed by Corporate 
Management Team without the need for the Internal Audit 
Plan to be re-approved. This being due to the Audit 
Committee meeting being before the Corporate 
Management Team meeting on 15th March 2023. 

 

6.   External Peer Review of Internal Audit  (Pages 39 - 52) 
 

To inform Audit Committee of the outcome of the mandatory external inspection 
of Hyndburn’s Internal Audit Team against the requirements of the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards and present the final report of the external inspection 
team. 
 
 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

7.   Audit Committee Training Needs  (Pages 53 - 56) 
 

To raise the issue for Audit Committee discussion on the training needs of the 
Committee for 2023/24 onwards following the Audit Committee Self-Assessment 
carried out by the Committee in 2022.  
 
Recommended – That Audit Committee determines the way it wishes to 
progress the training requirements for members of the Committee. 
 
 

8.   External Audit Progress Report  (Pages 57 - 66) 
 

To present to Audit Committee the update on progress in delivering our 
responsibilities as External Auditors.  
 

Recommended – That the report to be noted for informational purposes.  
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 28th November, 2022 

 
Present:  Councillor Dominik Allen (in the Chair), Councillors Noordad Aziz, 

Bernard Dawson MBE, Peter Edwards (Vice Chair) and 
Carole Haythornthwaite 
 

Apologies Councillor June Harrison 

  

 
77 Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions 

 

Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor June Harrison. 
 
There were no Declarations of Interest, Dispensations or Substitutions notified.  
 

78 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 

The minutes of the last meeting of the Audit Committee held on the 18th July 2022 
were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved – That the minutes be received and approved as a correct record.  
 
NB. Councillor Aziz noted that a cross party motion to the Government to indicate 
that the external audit situation was not acceptable is still to be completed.  
 

79 Risk Management Monitoring Report 
 

Stuart Sambrook, Policy Manager introduced the report to inform Audit Committee 
of the outcome of the review of the Strategic, Generic and Operational Risk 
Registers.  
 
There has been one major change to the Strategic Risk Register as below: 
 

Area Change Risk 

Rating 

With 

Controls 

NEW RISK 

Financial 

 

(Page 4) 

Risk 

Financial Overreach :--The Council is embarking on a range of 

major investments supported by significant amounts of External 

Funding.  Overspends or failure to deliver on these Projects could 

lead to significant additional costs falling on the Council, in terms of 

extra borrowing costs stemming from meeting additional project 

costs or the repayment of external funds. (URN:2037) 

Risk Owner 

Deputy Chief Executive 

Medium 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

Stuart Sambrook discussed the control measures in place to manage the risk.  
 
The Committee had a discussion around the risks of the funding causing financial 
difficulties and what affects that could have on the Council.  
 
There had been no major changes to the Generic Risk Register but 4 minor 
changes to the risks detailed below: 
 

 Failure to ensure that personal data is kept securely in accordance with Data 
Protection Act, GDPR and Freedom of Information Act 2000. – LOW 
PRIORITY 

 Failure to comply with CDM Regulations. – MEDIUM PRIORITY  
 
 
There has been one major change to the Operational Risk Register as below: 
 
 

Area Change Risk 

Rating 

With 

Controls 

NEW RISK 

Reputational 

 

(Page 5) 

Risk 

Failure to meet statutory timescales for delivery of planning 

decisions (URN:2038) 

Risk Owner 

Head of Planning & Transportation 

Medium 

 
 
There have been a number of minor changes that have been made to the 
Operational Risk Register and they are available in Appendix 3 of the report.  
 
The Committee were happy with the overall report.  
 
Councillor Noordad Aziz requested further information regarding the operational risk 
no 36 – Market Hall loss of income due to low take up of market hall stalls. He 
requested further information on how the risk has been reviewed.  
 
The Chair requested further information on the risk rating high regarding the 
strategic risk no 87 – The acquisition of key town centre buildings and delivery of a 
£22 million regeneration project within Accrington Town Centre.  
 
 
Resolved –   (1) That the report be noted by the Audit Committee.  

(2) The Policy manager to update back to Committee on the 
requests above.  

 
 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 
 
 

80 Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 Progress Report 
 

Mark Beard, Head of Audit & Investigations, presented a routine report to inform 
Members of the Audit Reports issued during the period July 2022 – October 2022 
and to bring to the attention of the Committee what the key issues were.  
 
The report included a list of the audit areas and any key issues, a summary of which 
is provided below: 
 

 Civil Contingencies – Substantial assurance 
 The audit found, as a result of test calls carried out both during and outside 

normal working hours that the process was not followed correctly and none of 
the 3 nominated Emergency Planning Officers was alerted to the test 
incident. 
 

 The audit agreed with the Emergency Planning Officer that the process 
would be reviewed and consideration would be given to have a rota in place 
for Emergency Planning Officers both inside and outside of working hours. 
There are 3 Officers on the list so consideration needs to be made to 
increase the number of Officers on the list to cover leave and sickness. It was 
agreed that Switchboard staff need to be briefed on current processes for 
when a civil contingency related call is received during working hours. 

 

 Engineers – Comprehensive assurance  
 

 No issues arising. 
 

 Disabled Facilities Grants (Better Care Fund) – Substantial assurance 
 
 The audit found that an agreement in place between Hyndburn Borough 

Council and an external organisation requires renewing as reduced fees had 
been negotiated due to budget pressures but the new lower fees were not 
reflected in the agreement between the Council and the external 
organisation. 
 

 Management agreed a new agreement would be put in place to reflect the 
changes. 
 

 Council Tax Write offs – Comprehensive assurance 
 
 No issues arising. 
 

 Mobile Telephony – Substantial assurance  
 
 The audit could not ascertain from the sample of mobile phone users chosen 

that all were aware of the Communications Policy. It was agreed with 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
4 

Management that all employees issued with a Council mobile phone are 
aware of the Communications Policy. 

 
 

 Markets – Substantial assurance  
 
 Management agreed that consideration would be given to the installation of a 

networked device in the Porters Office to enable them to access training, 
internal communications, email etc. as they currently use an Officer’s PC and 
that Officer’s log-in, which breaches internal policies. 

 

 Waste Collection and Recycling – Comprehensive assurance  
 
 No issues arising. 
 
 
The Chair was very pleased with the projected out-turn of 88.37% completed audits 
for 2022/23.  
 
Resolved – That the report be noted by the Audit Committee.  
 
 
 

81 Audit Committee Self-Assessment 2022 
 

Mark Beard, Head of Audit & Investigations presented the report to inform members 
of the results of the self - assessment process that members of the committee have 
carried out and for the Audit Committee to determine what the next steps, if any, 
should be.  
 
The report refers to and has been based upon the CIPFA publication “Audit 
Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2018 Edition” 
however the Head of Audit & Investigations informed the Committee a more recent 
version had recently been published for 2022.  
 
The assessment was carried out by all 6 members of the Audit Committee and the 
results have been amalgamated thus anonymising who said what.  
 
The Head of Audit & Investigations talked through the questions and the responses, 
clarifying points for members and comments for the Committee to consider.  
 
The group had a discussion following a section of question 12 – Consideration has 
been given to at least one independent member to sit on Audit Committee. This is 
currently not mandatory although it may become mandatory and the Council will 
address this at this point.  
 
The Chair confirmed he had attended the CIPFA Training for Audit Committee. 
 
The Committee all agreed it was a helpful exercise to have undertaken and agreed 
to reflect on the answers for a further discussion next year. 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
5 

 
Resolved – (1) That the report be noted by Audit Committee.  

 (2) That this item returns to Audit Committee in March 2023.  
 

 
 

82 External Review of Internal Audit 
 

Mark Beard, Head of Audit & Investigations gave a brief verbal update to the 
committee on the recent External Review of Internal Audit.  
 
This takes place every 5 years. Internal staff have been interviewed and there had 
been a self-assessment against the standards that includes 3 themes.  
  
There will be a formal detailed report discussed at the next Committee in March 
2023.  
 
 

83 Statement of Accounts 
 

Martin Dyson, The Head of Accountancy presented the report to inform the Audit 
Committee on the production of the Annual Accounts and their External Audit and to 
discuss any issues arising from the work.  
 
The Financial position and performance measures were discussed along with the 
key capital projects undertaken, highlighting a revenue underspend in year and the 
delivery of key capital spend on housing and community projects.  
 
It was explained that the statement of accounts has shown that the Council has a 
strong financial position which is due to the hard work undertaken across the 
Council during the year and thanks to all staff in the Council for their performance 
and contribution on this piece of work was noted to the Committee.  
 

The draft accounts were completed and published on the Council’s website in July 

2020. Subsequently, Mazars, the external auditors, have undertaken their onsite 

audit of the accounts and work is close to completion.  

 

Final Audit completeion was delayed due to a government ruling on an accounting 

issue that could require some minor narrative change to the statement notes. It was 

requested that the final sign off be delegated to the Chair of the Audit Committee. 

Councillor Aziz proposed to wait until the accounts had been completed and set up 

a further Committee to sign these off in the future. The Committee then had a vote 

on this proposal but the majority voted against it. 

 

Resolved –  (1) That the Audit findings report be noted by the Audit 

Committee.  

(2) That the Audit Committee delegated approval to the Chair of 

the Audit Committee to sign the Council’s Statement of Accounts 

for 2020/21 following completion of the external audit work.  

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
6 

(3) That the Audit Committee delegated approval to the Chair of 

the Audit Committee to approve and sign the letter of 

representation.  

 
84 External Audit Completion Report - Year Ended 31st March 2021 

 

Daniel Watson, External Auditor of Mazars attended the meeting to present the 
Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31st March 2021. He discussed the key 
messages in the report to the Committee.  
 
The Audit has been a true and fair view of the accounts, there were just a small 
number of audit areas outstanding but no significant impact to their audit opinion. In 
the significant findings section, 3 risks had been identified and discussed with the 
accounts team and a plan of action had been set.  
 
The external auditors acknowledged difficulties within the year and asked for a 
thank you to be placed on record to Joe McIntyre, Deputy Chief Executive and his 
Finance Team.  
 
The internal control findings and recommendations have been set and prioritised for 
the required actions to be completed.  
 
The Committee were happy and agreed the summary of misstatements within the 
report. 
 
The work is ongoing for the Councils arrangements for the year ended 31st March 
2021, it was noted that there are some weaknesses in the financial reporting 
process that the Council will address and put in place for future financial reporting.  
 
Resolved – That the report be noted by the Audit Committee.  
 

 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 10



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 06 March 2023 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT REPORTS & KEY ISSUES – PROGRESS 
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD JULY 2022 – 
OCTOBER 2022 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the Audit Reports issued during the period November 2022 – 

January 2023 and bring to the attention of the Committee what the key issues were. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 Notes the content of this report for informational purposes. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 This report crosses financial years and covers the period of November 2022 to January 

2023. The audit areas and any key issues detailed at Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 Members should be aware that the number of audit reports that are issued between 

each Committee meeting is subject to variation dependent on the size of the audit and 
any non-routine audit work, such as investigations, that the Team may be involved in. 
Therefore, for the purpose of reporting, only the audit reports fully completed, issued 
and agreed will be included. 

 
3.3 Any investigations that may be carried out will not be included as a matter of routine in 

this report, particularly if they relate to a specific individual or individuals. 
 
3.4 There is a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of 2022/23 

financial year in terms of audit days completed.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 3.



  Position as at end of January 2023 =  73.61% of the plan completed 
  Projected out-turn position for 2022/23 =  88.34% of the plan completed 
 
3.5 The position at the end of January 2023 can be broken down as follows:- 
 

Month % of the Plan Completed that Month 

April 2022 7.09% 

May 2022 7.25% 

June 2022 5.41% 

July 2022 7.86% 

August 2022 9.50% 

September 2022 6.47% 

October 2022 7.97% 

November 2022 8.22% 

December 2022 5.32% 

January 2023 8.52% 

 
3.6 The projected out-turn position for the year is based on the 10 month period April 2022 

to January 2023 and assumes that the output remains at the same constant for the 
remainder of 2022/23. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as the report is for informational purposes only 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information held by the 

audit team based on the work completed 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights 
implications arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during the 
audit process itself, there is no direct risk 
implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 

This report is produced for information 
awareness of the progress of the Audit Team 
against the annual Internal Audit Plan. The 

Page 12

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Audit Planning process has had an equality 
impact assessment which remains valid and it 
is not necessary to update this with a 
Customer First Analysis at this time. The 
individual audit assignments may, in some 
cases, feed into the needs of equality and 
diversity issues within individual service areas 
of the Council 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



APPENDIX 1 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 6th March 2023 
 
Summary of the main issues arising from audits carried out 
November 2022 – January 2023 
 
 
Homelessness:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 
 
 
Transfer of Assets:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 The audit found that there was a lack of clear defined process / policy for the transfer of 

assets. Whilst each case is treated in its own right and is subject to scrutiny by Cabinet 
approval and signed off by the appropriate Directors and Head of Service, the terms 
and conditions applied are not necessarily consistent in each case. 
 

 It was agreed with Management that consideration is given to the development of a 
Transfer of Assets Policy. This would include the principles and process the Authority 
will use to manage applications for the transfer of assets, and will take into account the 
relevant legislations surrounding market value and disposal of assets. 

 
 
Townscape Heritage Initiative:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Cash-flow Management:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 
 
 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR):- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 As there has been staff turnover in a lot of areas across the Council, the audit found 

examples where staff had not received formal training on GDPR. It was agreed with 
Management that refresher training would be carried out for all staff and ensure all new 
staff were included in this. 
 

 The audit found that the Human Resources Team had requested details of any 
employee accident documentation so that it could be retained on the employee’s file in 
case of any future insurance claims. This had not been actioned and the audit 
recommended that this be done. 

 
 
Early Retirement / Voluntary Redundancy (ER/VR):- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 No issues arising. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 06 March 2023 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT FOLLOW-UPS REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 
July 2022 to February 2023 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the outcome of routine follow-ups following the previously 

agreed action plans for completed Audit Reports. The follow-ups detailed within this 
report are those carried out during the period July 2022 – February 2023. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 
 

 Notes the content of this report for informational purposes. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 This report covers the period July 2022 – February 2023 and provides the details of the 

follow-ups carried out shown at Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 Following the agreement of the recommendations between Management and Internal 

Audit following the completion of the audit assignment, the area is revisited by Internal 
Audit and the recommendations are reviewed to ensure they have been implemented 
as agreed. This process is known as the ‘Follow-Up’. 

 
3.3 Internal Audit assesses the current position to what was agreed at the end of the audit. 

Where no action has been taken by the Service Area, then Internal Audit will question 
why and issue a revised Action Plan. Part of the control within this process is 
consideration by Audit Committee of any issues that arise. The Committee has the 
ability to ask questions of Management in the relative service areas why they have not 
acted upon the agreed Action Plan. The Committee can also express what its 
expectations would be with regard to such a problem occurring. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4.



3.4 Internal Audit aim to carry out a Follow Up for each completed audit area within 6 
months of completion. However there are a number of exceptions to that aim:- 

 
i.) Follow-Up in 6 months would be pointless if the recommendations are 

low enough priority to allow a longer time frame. 
ii.) Work of the Audit Team does not allow the Follow-Up to be carried out. 

Although Follow Ups are an important part of the process the Head of 
Audit & Investigations must always weigh this against the need for 
achieving the Audit Plan and auditing the risks the Council faces. 

iii.) There were no recommendations arising from the original audit.  
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as the report is for informational purposes only 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information held by the 

audit team based on the work completed 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are legal or human rights implications 
arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during the 
audit process itself, there is no direct risk 
implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
This report is produced for information 
awareness of the progress of the Audit Team 
in terms of following up on actions previously 
agreed for implementation at the end of an 
audit assignment. Whilst individual actions 
may occasionally have equality or diversity 
requirements, this report does not as it is 
presenting facts from other sources. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report. 
 

Page 18

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


APPENDIX 1 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 6 March 2023 
 
Follow-Ups     July 2022 – February 2023  
 
Follow-Ups Carried Out 
 
 
Issues arising from follow-up 
 

 The table below shows an analysis of the results of the above Follow-Up work having 
taken place:- 

 

Audit Area No. of Actions 
Agreed as 
Reported 

No. of Actions 
Agreed 

Implemented 

Comments 

Civil 
Contingencies 

1 1 Implemented – New procedures have 
been introduced relating to the 
Emergency Planning Officer and 
responsibilities during an emergency 
situation. The new procedure will be 
passed to all officers within the 
Lancashire Resilience Forum (LRF). 
An updated flowchart determines the 
procedures to follow both in and out of 
working hours for both Health & Safety 
and Civil Contingency calls. Should the 
HBC Officers documented on the 
flowchart all be unavailable, then the 
response required would go down in 
seniority, commencing with the Heads 
of Service. This situation would be 
highly unlikely.  

Assets of 
Community 
Value 

1 1 Implemented – The HBC Risk 
Register has been updated to include 
potential risks relating to Assets in the 
Community. This will reduce the risk of 
potential costs to the Authority 
following an appeal and/or 
compensation. 

Property 
Management 
Rent Income 

5 4 Implemented – R1 Discussions are 
ongoing regarding the Terrier database 
being updated with Estates data  
 
Implemented – R2 A spreadsheet has 
been introduced to record all property 
inspections, including occupied 

Page 19



properties and this will be placed on 
the H drive to allow shared access. 
Compliance records have also been 
requested from tenants from August 
2022.  
 
Not implemented – R3 – A decision 
has not been made on using data 
present on other Council systems that 
may improve the debt recovery 
procedures. An amendment would 
need to be made to the Authority’s 
Privacy Statement to ensure 
compliance with GDPR.  
 
Implemented – R4 – The updating of 
the key register within Corporate 
Property is part of an ongoing exercise 
to enable all key registers to be held in 
one place. 
 
Implemented – R5 – The updating of 
the Propman database and the manual 
filing system is ongoing and will 
continue.  
 
 

Safeguarding 1 1 Implemented – All staff with access to 
a PC have been asked to complete the 
Safeguarding training module on the 
Hyve by the end of May 23. 
Consideration will be given as to the 
best way to reach other staff as part of 
their 2023 training plan.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 06 March 2023 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2023-24 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform Audit Committee about the Internal Audit Plan for the financial year 2023/24 

and request that Audit Committee approves the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 
2023/24 and grants delegate authority to the Head of Audit & Investigations to make 
any minor amendments to the Audit Plan proposed by Corporate Management Team 
without the need for the Internal Audit Plan to be re-approved. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 approve the Internal Audit Plan for the financial year 2023/24; and 
 grant delegated authority to the Head of Audit & Investigations to make any 

minor amendments to the Audit Plan proposed by Corporate Management 
Team without the need for the Internal Audit Plan to be re-approved. This being 
due to the Audit Committee meeting being before the Corporate Management 
Team meeting on 15th March 2023. 

 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Internal Audit Plan is set annually and monitored monthly. This practice is in line 

with guidance issued by both the Chartered Institute of Auditors and the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy. This also links into the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. An annual Audit Plan with monthly monitoring allows the 
Head of Audit & Investigations to react to changes and, if necessary, to revise the 
Audit Plan to incorporate these changes. 

 
3.2 The Internal Audit Plan forms the work plan of the Internal Audit Team for the financial 

year. It is risk based and is set annually and is cross referenced to the Council’s risk 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5.



registers. Any risks within the risk register that are not already reflected within the Audit 
Plan are added to it. 

 
3.3 The 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan has made some alterations which reflect changes 

occurring within the Council as well as changes designed to streamline the Audit Plan. 
The tables below detail these changes:- 

 
Amendments to the Audit Plan 

 

Audit Area Comments 

Covid Support Grants Deleted from Ad-hoc and added into 
Grant Funding Initiatives within the Audit 
Plan. 

Decarbonisation Grant Scheme Deleted from Ad-hoc and added into 
Grant Funding Initiatives within the Audit 
Plan. 

Energy Support Grants Deleted from Ad-hoc and added into 
Grant Funding Initiatives within the Audit 
Plan. 

Government Connect Deleted from Computer Audit as this 
area no-longer exists. 

Levelling Up Funding Deleted from Ad-hoc and added into 
Grant Funding Initiatives within the Audit 
Plan. 

Travellers Site Deleted from Establishments as this area 
is no longer Council responsibility. 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund Deleted from Ad-hoc and added into 
Grant Funding Initiatives within the Audit 
Plan. 

Watchguard Software Deleted from Ad-hoc and added into 
Computer Audit section of the Audit Plan. 

Write Backs Deleted from Ad-Hoc and absorbed into 
the Council Tax Core System. 

 
 
 Audit Areas Added to the Audit Plan 
 

Audit Area Comments 

HMRC / Payroll Processes This was a management request and 
was added to the Ad-Hoc & 
Investigations part of the Audit Plan. 
Following risk assessment & scoring it 
has been included in the 2023/24 Audit 
Plan. 

 
3.4 There are 7 Audit Areas which have remained in Ad-Hoc & Investigations section of 

the 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan. These are all audit engagements that have been rolled 
forward into the 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan after having been rescored and re-risk 

Page 22



evaluated. In addition there are a further 6 areas which remain in Ad-Hoc & 
Investigations, 4 of which do not have a time allocation. The remaining 2 do have a 
time allocation but neither are audit engagements. These 2 are areas where Internal 
Audit is supporting or offering advice. 

 
3.5 The Audit Plan has been cross referenced to the latest version of the risk registers 

(January 2023 version). This contributes to the risk analysis of audit areas and is a key 
part of the scoring matrix that is part of the overall risk assessment. Where an audit 
area is reflected in more than one of the risk registers then the score for the highest 
level of risk is applied. For example, Strategic High risks score greater than 
Operational High Risk or Generic High Risk. This weighted scoring reflects the levels 
of risk and their impacts on achievement of the Council’s aims and objectives. 

 
3.6 The risk assessment for the Audit Plan considered 9 risk factors. Each of these factors 

has a score, some of which are weighted according to risk. The audit areas scoring the 
highest pose a higher level of risk to the Council, in theory. The 9 risk factors used 
were:-  

  1.) Audit Area covered by a risk in the Risk Registers 
  2.) Have system changes taken place? 
  3.) Has the service or area been subject to cuts / job losses / restructure? 
  4.) Does External Audit require coverage? 
  5.) Is the audit ongoing, b/fwd or deleted from the 2022/23 Audit Plan? 
  6.) Does the audit area directly affect the Council’s financial position? 
  7.) Is it a Council, Management Team or Manager priority? 
  8.) When was the last audit carried out? 
  9.) What is the monetary value / income of the area? 
 
3.7 None of the above areas has the ability to affect the assessment process in their own 

right which is why the Head of Audit & Investigations believes that the risk process 
accurately indicates which audit areas could pose a greater risk if left unaudited. 

 
3.8 An allocation of 10% of the available audit days has been classified as contingency 

days. These days are set aside to absorb time spent on ad-hoc pieces of unplanned 
work such as investigations which arise during the financial year. The 10% allocation is 
in line with previous years and previous External Audit recommendations. In addition, 
contingency set at this level has also proved to be effective in previous years. 

 
3.9 An allocation of 6 days has been made for audit follow-ups. This is the same as 

2022/23. 
 
3.10 An allocation of 42 days has been made for audit advice. This is the same as 2022/23. 
 
3.11 The Audit Plan risk assessment highlighted 13 audit areas as high risk, a decrease of 3 

on 2022/23. The 2023/24 Audit Plan includes all 13 of these high risk areas. 
 
3.12 There are 101 medium risk areas, an increase of 9 on 2022/23 and 12 are included in 

the Audit Plan. The remaining 89 medium risk areas will remain on a reserve list and 
will be included if other time allocations such as contingency days are not utilised. 

 

Page 23



3.13 There are 23 low risk areas, a decrease of 5 on 2022/23. None of the low risk areas 
are likely to be covered in 2023/24 Audit Plan unless the level of risk significantly 
increases or a specific issue is identified during the financial year. 

 
3.14 As in previous years, the Head of Audit & Investigations has been quite stringent with 

the allocation of audit days to maximise coverage and believes that the 2023/24 Audit 
Plan is challenging, but if achieved will give a good overview of the Council’s key risk 
areas as reflected in the risk registers. It will also assist Management and those 
charged with Governance in gaining additional assurance on the Council’s risk 
environment and the various activities audited. 

 
3.15 The 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan summary is attached as Appendix 1. 
 
3.16 The Head of Audit & Investigations must produce an annual Internal Audit Plan as this 

forms the basis of the annual work plan for the Audit Team.  
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There is no alternative option as it is essential that an annual Audit plan is produced 

and approved by Audit Committee. Failure to do so would make it very difficult to prove 
that the work carried out is risk based and could leave the Council exposed to 
unforeseen risk which an audit could identify. Internal Audit would also be failing to 
comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards by not having a clear defined 
work plan. In addition the Council and the Internal Audit Team would risk criticism from 
External Audit for failing to comply with best practice. 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Prior to risk assessing and formulation of the Internal Audit Plan 2023/24, consultation 

took place with Management Team, all Chief Officers, all Heads of Service and the 
Internal Audit Team. In total, 15 people representing all departments and senior 
management of the Council were consulted. The responses were fed into the risk 
scoring matrix which the Audit Plan 2023/24 reflects. 

 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights 
implications arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during the 
audit process itself, there is no direct risk 
implication from this report. 

Page 24



Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
A Customer First Analysis has not been 
completed because the report does not 
change current Council policy. An Equality 
Impact Assessment has previously been 
carried out for the Audit Planning Process 
which remains valid. The audit of individual 
areas may, in some cases, feed into the 
Customer First Analysis needs of the 
respective service area of the Council. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report. 

Page 25

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Plan 

 
 

2023/24 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 27



INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2023/24 
 
 
Changes & Improvements 
 
There have been no major structural changes to the Audit Plan as it rolls forwards into 
2023/24. 
 
Following consultation with Heads of Service, Chief Officers, Management Team and 
the review of the Risk Registers, there is 1 new area added to the audit plan. This is 
listed under Ad-hoc Work & Investigations. The Head of Audit & Investigations will 
determine whether the new area listed under Ad-hoc Work & Investigations is absorbed 
into a larger audit it relates to or whether it remains as a separate area and is 
transferred to the relevant section of the Audit Plan as a permanent addition to the audit 
universe at the end of 2023/24. In addition there are also 13 other audit areas within the 
Ad-hoc Work & Investigations section of the Audit Plan. These remain within this section 
of the Audit Plan in 2023/24. There are 7 audit areas which following risk scoring have 
been brought forward from the 2022/23 Audit Plan. The remaining 6 areas are not 
specific audit engagements and have been left in Ad-hoc but will be reviewed again at 
the end of 2023/24. 
 
As part of the changes made to the Audit Plan for 2023/24, 2 audit areas have been 
deleted from the Audit Plan as one no longer exists and the other has been transferred 
out of the Council’s responsibility. A further 5 areas have been transferred from Ad-hoc 
to Grant Funding Initiatives in the Audit Plan. One other area in Ad-hoc was deleted and 
has been absorbed into a larger Core System area of the Audit Plan. Another area has 
been deleted from the Computer Audit section of the Audit Plan as this area no longer 
exists. 
 
Within the audit plan 10% of the total days available are set aside as contingency days. 
These are used in the case of unplanned ad-hoc work being required or it being 
necessary to carry out investigations. 
 
The risk assessment process for each audit area is based upon 9 risk criteria. All 3 risk 
registers have been cross-referenced to the audit plan. The scoring mechanism in the 
Audit Plan risk assessment for the risks gives greater weight not only Strategic Risks 
but also the level of risk such as High, Medium or Low. Areas with multiple risks have 
their score based on the highest level of risk. As an example Operational High risk 
scores more highly than a Strategic Low Risk and therefore the score for Operational 
High risks would be applied. 
 
The risk assessment process also recognises that some areas may be of importance to 
the control environment but might not pose a significant enough risk to be listed in the 
registers. Such areas may still be audited if they score highly in other criteria. 
 

Page 28



The allocation of days has been quite stringent in order to allow the maximum coverage 
possible with the resources available. Where audit areas have been reviewed 
previously the allocation of days has taken into consideration what is realistically 
achievable based on previous knowledge. 
 
 
Areas that are Priority 
 

 Core Systems – These are the Council’s core financial systems and remain a 
priority. External Audit place reliance on core systems for gaining assurance in their 
audit of the Council’s Financial Statements. Not all core systems will be examined, 
only those with the highest risk scores, 4 of the systems will be reviewed in 2023/24. 

 Grant Funding Initiatives – Relied on by External Audit and other Partners. 

 There are 13 High scoring areas, all of which are included within the 2023/24 Audit 
Plan. 

 There are 101 medium scoring areas of which 12 are included in the 2023/24 Audit 
Plan. Additional audit areas from the 89 excluded will be added into the audit plan in 
the event that there are unused contingency days available or other days allocated 
within the plan are unused e.g. planned audit work uses less days than allocated. 

 There are 25 low scoring areas, none of which are included in the 2023/24 Audit 
Plan. None of these areas are likely to be covered in 2023/24 unless there is a 
significant increase in risks within any of those areas. 

 
 
Monitoring 
 

 Plan progress monitored monthly by Head of Audit & Investigations 

 Performance reported to the Director of Resources monthly 

 Performance reported to Audit Committee three times a year 

 Annual performance of the plan reported to the Director of Resources, Corporate 
Management Team, Audit Committee and External Audit 

 Performance of the Audit Plan reviewed periodically by the Resources Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee as part of their review of Service Business Plans 

 Audit Plan reviewed annually in consultation with Strategic Directors/Managers and 
Service Heads in conjunction with External Audit. Approved by Audit Committee. 

 
 
Mark Beard 
Head of Audit & Investigations 
20th February 2023 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT PLAN 2023/24 Annual APPENDIX 1

Plan Actual

CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEMS

Systems Based Reviews

Asset Management

Bank Reconciliation

Cash Receipting

Council Tax 23.00

Creditor Payments

Debtors

General Ledger

Housing Benefits 25.00

NDR 20.00

Payroll 23.00

Treasury Management

Non-Systems Queries / Work

Asset Management

Bank Reconciliation

Cash Receipting

Council Tax

Creditor Payments

Debtors

General Ledger

Housing Benefits

NDR

Payroll

Treasury Management

Subtotal for Core Systems 91.00 0.00

NON CORE SYSTEMS

Allotments & Refund Deposits

Benefits Overpayments & Rec

Building Control Fees

Car Allowances

Car Leasing / Loans

Cashflow Management

CCTV

Charities

Christmas Lights

Civic Chains, Cups & Inventory

Commercial Rents/Lease/Renew

Complaints Monitoring System

Data Sharing Protocols

Debt Recovery Arrangements

DFGs

Dog Warden

Drivers Policy & Handbook

Electoral Registration / Elections

Energy Conserve & Climate Chg

Equalities

ER/VR

Fees & Charges

Page 31



Flexi Scheme

Food Team 14.00

Freedom of Information

Gifts & Hospitality

Health & Safety

Income Collection Arrangements

Insurance Arrangements

Land Charges & Registry VDD

Leaders & Opposition Budgets

Lease Arrangements

Licences Taxi

LSVT Pension Strain

Markets Debt Collection

Mayoral Allowances/Secretarial

Members Allowances

Members Register of Interests

Memb Svs - Funding Applications

Officers Imprests & Subsistence

P-Card Processes

Pest Control

Planning Delegated Reports

Planning Fees

Procurement Arrangements

Scrutiny Function

Selective Licensing Priv Landlord

Separation of Duties - Post Cuts

Service Recharges

Sickness Monitoring

Spot-On Vehicle Tracking

Street Traders

Stores & Inventories

S106 Agreements

Training Budgets / PDR Process

Write Off Processes

Subtotal for Non Core Systems 14.00 0.00

ESTABLISHMENTS

Cemeteries & Crematorium 13.00

CVMU

Engineers

Environmental Protection 15.00

Facilities Team

Fleet Management

Homelessness Team

Howarth Art Gallery

Markets

Parks & Open Spaces

Shared Service Contact Centre

Sports Pitches 12.00

Waste Collection & Recycling

Page 32



Subtotal for Establishments 40.00 0.00

COMPUTER AUDIT

Assets

BACS Direct Debit

Data Security & Storage 9.00

Disaster Recovery 9.00

Help Desk

Internet / E-Mail

IS / IT Strategy

IT Procurement

Mobile Telephony

Network Controls

b/fwdPCI & DSS Security 10.00

Security Policy

Software Maintenance Contracts

System Development

Watchguard Software

Subtotal for Computer Audit 28.00 0.00

CONTRACT AUDIT

Capital Programme 13.00

Contracts CDM + H&S

Contract Standing Orders

Other Contract Issues 10.00

Over £250  Exp. Monitoring

Partnerships

Subtotal for Cont & Partner Audit 23.00 0.00

GRANT FUNDING INITIATIVES

HBC

Covid Support Grants

Decarbonisation Grant Funding

Energy Support Grants

HMR Loans Recov/Empty Homes

Housing Support Fund

Levelling Up Fund 25.00

NNDR3 Grant Claim

Other Funding Streams

Rhyddings Park HLF

THI & THI s106 Funding

Transitional Housing Funding

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 15.00

Subtotal for Grant Funding 40.00 0.00

FOLLOW UPS

Follow Ups 6.00

Subtotal for Follow Ups 6.00 0.00

AUDIT ADVICE

Benefit Issues

Internet

Page 33



ICO Web Info

Audit Support to Other Services

Broadway Building / Security

Year End Issues

Alchometer Recalibration

Future of External Audit 

Ext Audit Governance Questions

Friendly Faces

Coaching

Elections Queries

Rentention & Disposal Document

Page 34



Audit Advice 42.00

Subtotal for Audit Advice 42.00 0.00

OTHER AUDIT AREAS

Business Continuity Planning

Civil Contingencies

Constitution & Regulations 12.00

Consultation Arrangements

Corporate Strategy

GDPR Compliance Work

Leisure in Hyndburn Risk to HBC

Project Management

Risk Management

Safeguarding

Unfair Dismissal Claims - Cuts

Subtotal for Other Audit Areas 12.00 0.00

AD HOC WORK & INVESTIGATIONS

b/fwdAccountancy Support to Depts 12.00

Dignity at Work Policy Review 4.00

b/fwdEmpty Properties 13.00

b/fwdFinancial Controls (HofA) 12.00

b/fwdGrant Claims Submission Process 13.00

HMRC / Payroll Processes 13.00

Housing Infrastructure 15.00

Leisure Transformation

bfwdLocal Plan Production 13.00

b/fwdOther Pandemic Grant Funding 13.00

b/fwdRemote Working Arrangements 15.00

Smart Working Strategy

Transferred Assets

Ukrainian Refugee Scheme

Page 35



Contingency 78.00

Subtotal for Investigations 201.00 0.00

TOTAL CORE AUDIT 497.00 0.00

SERVICE IMPROVEMENT

Data Quality

Indicators

LDCAG Benchmarking

TOTAL CPA & SERV IMPROV 0.00 0.00

CONSULTANCY & CORP OBJECTIVES

Annual Governance Statement 1.00

Annual Audit Report 3.00

Anti-Fraud & Corruption 10.00

Audit Committee 5.00

Audit Plan & Planning 14.00

Cabinet

Community Trigger / Anti-Social

Domestic Homicide

External Audit 3.00

FOI Requests

GDPR Issues / Queries 6.00

Members Info Bulletins

Money Laund & Proc of Crime

National Fraud Initiative 7.00

Peer Review of Internal Audit

PREVENT / Anti-Terror

PSIAS

RIPA

Schools Ambassador Scheme

Service Planning

Stage 3 Complaint Investigations

Standards / Scrutiny Committee

Whistleblowing

TOTAL CONSULTANCY 49.00 0.00

Page 36



TRAINING

Courses of Study & Exams 0.00

Staff Development & Training 15.00 0.00

TOTAL TRAINING 15.00 0.00

NON AUDIT

Appraisal PDR Scheme 2.00

Health & Safety

Job Evaluation 2.00

Local Elections & Count

Mgt Team & CFO Meetings 3.00

Office Meetings 12.00

Regional Audit Groups 3.00

Service Managers Meetings

Stationery & Gen Admin 8.00

Sup'visn/Mgt of Audit 26.00

Timesheets / Clockcards etc. 6.00

Unison 2.00

Other Non-Audit

TOTAL NON AUDIT 64.00 0.00

ABSENCE

Annual Leave 109.00

Statutory Leave 36.00

Sickness 10.00

Special Domestic Leave 3.00

Compassionate Leave

Other Absence

TOTAL ABSENCE 158.00 0.00

TOTAL ANNUAL PLAN 783.00 0.00

Maximum Available Days with 783.00

staff in 2023/24 at 01/04/23

Days not or over allocated 0.00

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 06 March 2023 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: PEER REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT – 
EXTERNAL ASSESSMENT OF CONFORMITY 
WITH THE PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT 
STANDARDS 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform Audit Committee of the outcome of the mandatory external inspection of 

Hyndburn’s Internal Audit Team against the requirements of the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards and present the final report of the external inspection team. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 notes the content of this report. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Every Internal Audit team within the public sector must conform to the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards. The Standards state every public sector internal audit team 
must undergo an external assessment of their conformance with the Standards once 
every 5 years. Hyndburn Borough Council’s Internal Audit team was previously 
assessed in early 2018 meaning the next external assessment had to be completed by 
early 2023. 

 
3.2 The external review can be achieved in a number of ways. The review can be procured 

from an external provider such as one of the large private accountancy firms or from 
one of the professional bodies such as the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors. 
Procuring the review in this way does carry a direct financial cost. An alternative 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6.



process is to undergo the inspection by external Peer Review. This does not incur a 
direct financial cost but it does require reciprocal staff time input. 

 
3.3 A structured Peer Review process was created for the 2017/18 review process. The 

methodology was fully reviewed and agreed for the 2022/23 reviews. Following 
discussion across the County, 8 of the Borough Councils within the Lancashire Audit 
Group agreed that they would be part of the current Peer Review Process. Two of the 
Lancashire Councils chose to procure an external review, 4 authorities buy-in an audit 
service, one authority is part of the North West Chief Audit Executives Group and has 
their review through that group. The final authority buy their audit service from the 
authority which is part of the North West group. 

 
3.4 The Lancashire Districts that are part of the Peer Review process have been inspected 

by 2 experienced Heads of Audit from 2 other Councils. The Head of Audit & 
Investigations has carried out a review of another Lancashire Internal Audit Team and 
will be involved in the review of another Lancashire Internal Audit Team in the coming 
weeks. 

 
3.5 Hyndburn’s review began in mid-2022 with the Head of Audit & Investigations 

evidencing all of the Standards. Significant volumes of information about the Internal 
Audit Team, its processes and work were shared with the Review Team prior to the 
inspection. All individuals chosen to be interviewed as part of the review also 
completed a questionnaire prior to the review. Some additional Heads of Service who 
were not interviewed were also asked to complete a questionnaire. 

 
3.6 The External Review Team examined the evidence, questionnaires and then carried 

out interviews via Teams to explore issues further on 15th, 16th and 17th of November 
2022. The External Review Team met with the Head of Audit & Investigations via 
Teams on 21st November 2022.  

 
3.7 The External Review Team’s report is attached as Appendix 1. 
 
3.8 The External Review can arrive at 3 judgements based on the outcome of the review 

process, these are conforms, partially conforms and does not conform. Their 
judgement is that Hyndburn’s Internal Audit Team conforms to the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. 

 
3.9 The External Review Team stated “Overall the Peer Review was an extremely positive 

exercise with feedback from all interviewees mirroring a consistent view that the 
Internal Audit Team, in particular the Head of Audit and Investigations, is seen as a key 
strategic partner within the Council.  It is clear that the Internal Audit team is a valued 
service offering sound, confidential and independent advice across the Council. In 
particular, this can be evidenced by the wide range of investigations the team are 
asked to support due to their skill set and ability”. 

 
3.10 The External Review Team has made 5 recommendations which are detailed in the 

body of their report and the action plan at the end of their report. The External Review 
Team stated “Our recommendations either relate to best practice matters or are for 
future development based on new CIPFA Guidance in relation to Audit Committees.  

Page 40



Our review found no significant issues which need to be addressed in order to ensure 
conformance with the PSIAS standards”. 

 
3.11 The Head of Audit & Investigations has updated the Quality Assurance and 

Improvement Programme to reflect the External Reviewer’s findings and the 
recommendations made. 

 
3.12 All completed Peer Review inspections are then moderated by the Lancashire Heads 

of Audit Moderation Panel to ensure that all reviews have met the agreed the 
methodology and a consistent approach has been made to disclosure of findings and 
recommendations. 

 
3.13 The Head of Audit & Investigations received a letter from the Moderation Panel on 1st 

February 2023 which stated “the Moderation Team concluded that the review of, and 
resulting report into, Hyndburn Borough Council’s conformance with the PSIAS was 
fair and consistent with the expected standards established for the peer review 
process”. There were no issues, comments or recommendations made by the 
Moderation Panel. 

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There is no alternative option as it is a mandatory requirement under the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards that every public sector internal audit team is externally 
assessment against the standards once every 5 years. 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Corporate Management Team, Chair of Audit Committee, a cross section of Service 

Heads and the Audit Team were all consulted by the External Review Team as part of 
the process. 

 
 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights 
implications arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risk is considered throughout the Peer 
Review process itself, there is no direct risk 
implication from this report. 

Page 41



Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
A Customer First Analysis has not been 
completed because the report does not 
change current Council policy. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report. 

Page 42

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Review Team: 
Jo Billington, Head of Governance and Business Support, Wyre 
Borough Council 
Tracy Greenhalgh, Head of Audit and Risk, Blackpool Council 
 

Assessment Dates: 15 – 21 November 2022  

Final Report Issued:   31st January 2023 

 
HYNDBURN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

PEER REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT AGAINST THE 
UK PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS 

 

NOVEMBER 2022 

 

 

 

Page 43



P a g e  | 2 
External Peer Review of Hyndburn Borough Council Internal Audit Service – Nov 2022 

 

1 Introduction 

 
1.1 All principal local authorities and other relevant bodies subject to the Accounts 

and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 (amended), the Accounts and Audit 
(Wales) regulations 2005, section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1973 and the Amendment to the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) 
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006 must make provision for internal audit in 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) as well as 
the (CIPFA) Local Government Application Note. 

 

1.2 A professional, independent and objective internal audit service is one of the 
key elements of good governance in local government. 

 
1.3 The PSIAS require that an external assessment of an organisation’s internal 

audit function is carried out once every five years by a qualified, independent 
assessor or assessment team from outside of the organisation. External 
assessments can be in the form of a full external assessment, or a self- 
assessment with independent external validation. 

 

1.4 The Lancashire Districts Chief Auditor Group (LDCAG) has established a ‘peer- 
review’ process that is managed and operated by the constituent authorities. 
This process addresses the requirement of external assessment by ‘self- 
assessment with independent external validation’ and this report presents the 
summary findings of the review carried out on behalf of Hyndburn Borough 
Council. 

 

1.5 “An independent assessor or assessment team” means not having either a real 
or an apparent conflict of interest and not being a part of, or under the control 
of, the organisation to which the internal audit activity belongs.” This review has 
been carried out by the Head of Audit and Risk at Blackpool Council and the 
Head of Governance and Business Support at Wyre Borough Council. Their ‘pen 
pictures’, outlining background experience and qualifications, are included at 
Appendix A. 

 

2 Approach/Methodology 
 
2.1 The LDCAG has agreed a detailed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)  

that outlines the broad methodology for the conduct of this review. A copy of 
the MoU is available upon request. However, in summary, the key elements of 
the process are: 

 

 The peer review is undertaken in three stages: pre-review; on-site review; 
post-review and covers audit activity during the period covered in the latest 
Head of Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion. For this review the on- 
site part has been carried out remotely via Microsoft Teams.  The Internal 
Audit Annual Report for the year ending 2021/22 has been considered 
and the time scale is from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, although 
evidence demonstrating key points or aspects of the Standards has been 
considered from examples relating to earlier financial years where 
necessary. 

Page 44



P a g e  | 3 
External Peer Review of Hyndburn Borough Council Internal Audit Service – Nov 2022 

 

 Hyndburn Borough Council has completed and shared its self-evaluation 

of the Internal Audit service together with any relevant supporting 

evidence/documentation in advance of on-site (via Teams) review 

commencement. The LDCAG has agreed that the self-assessment will 

use the CIPFA Local Government Application Note (LGAN) 

questionnaire. Typically, supporting evidence will include the Internal 

Audit Plan and Charter, the Head of Internal Audit Annual Report and 

Opinion, Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and examples 

of final audit reports. 

 To support what would have been the on-site review, a customer survey 

was carried out via Survey Monkey which was issued to key personnel 

within Hyndburn Borough Council. 

 The review itself comprised a combination of desktop evaluation and a 

series of meetings via Teams which equates to what would normally be 

the ‘on-site’ review. 

 The review cannot reasonably consider all elements of the LGAN self- 

assessment and the review team used the ‘desktop’ period to determine 

strengths, weaknesses and subsequent key lines of enquiry in order that 

the review itself is risk-based, timely and adds real value. Hyndburn 

District Council’s Internal Audit Team has been assessed against the 

three broad themes of: Purpose and Positioning; Structure and 

Resources; and Audit Execution. Impact is considered an overarching 

theme within these areas. 

 Upon conclusion, the Review team offers a ‘true and fair’ judgement and 

each Authority will be appraised as Conforms, Partially Conforms or 

Does Not Conform against each thematic area of the LGAN, from which 

an aggregation of the three themed scores gives an overall Authority 

score. 

 

3 Summary Findings 
 

3.1 Following a detailed examination process, the review team has concluded the 

following judgements: 
 

Area of Focus Judgement 

Purpose & Positioning Conforms 

Structure & Resources Conforms 

Audit Execution Conforms 

Overall Judgement: Conforms 

Page 45



P a g e  | 4 
External Peer Review of Hyndburn Borough Council Internal Audit Service – Nov 2022 

 

Assessment against the individual elements of each area of focus is included 

in the table at Appendix B. 

Overall Opinion 

 
3.2 Overall the Peer Review was an extremely positive exercise with feedback 

from all interviewees mirroring a consistent view that the Internal Audit Team, 

in particular the Head of Audit and Investigations, is seen as a key strategic 

partner within the Council.  It is clear that the Internal Audit team is a valued 

service offering sound, confidential and independent advice across the 

Council. In particularly, this can be evidenced by the wide range of 

investigations the team are asked to support due to their skill set and ability.   

 

3.3 All evidence provided supporting the PSIAS Self-Assessment was well 

organised, detailed and provided a clear audit trail which helped ensure a 

smooth peer review process.   

 
3.4 Our recommendations either relate to best practice matters or are for future 

development based on new CIPFA Guidance in relation to Audit Committees.  

Our review found no significant issues which need to be addressed in order 

to ensure conformance with the PSIAS standards.   

 

3.5 The peer review identified 5 points for consideration for including in the 

service’s QAIP (Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme).   

 

Last Peer Review (2018) 

 
3.6 The Peer Review Team considered the 5 recommendations arising from the 

previous peer review carried out in 2018. We do not consider any need to 

carry forward any of these recommendations as outstanding for this review.   

Page 46



P a g e  | 5 
External Peer Review of Hyndburn Borough Council Internal Audit Service – Nov 2022 

 

 
Significant Observations  

 

3.7 There are no significant observations which would prevent the Council 
adhering to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standard. 
 

Minor Observations  
 

Purpose and Positioning 
 

1000 Remit 

 
3.8 As part of the annual staff performance review, discussions are held around 

the need to ensure compliance with the Council’s Code of Conduct and 
supporting principles.  The PSIAS also set out a Code of Ethics specifically for 
internal auditors.  It would be best practice to evidence audit team sign-up to 
this specific Code of Ethics to demonstrate compliance in this area.   

1000 Reporting Lines   

 
3.9 An Audit Committee is in place which meets three times a year with the option 

to arrange a fourth meeting if necessary.  When a new elected member joins 
the Committee, a briefing session will be held with them and other ad hoc 
training is delivered as required. The new CIPFA Position Statement on the 
Role of Audit Committee (2022) advocates for at least four Audit Committee 
meetings a year and the introduction of two independent members.  Whilst 
this is not yet a mandated requirement, it may be something the Council wish 
to consider to further enhance the importance of governance, risk and control.   
 
1110 Independence  
 

3.10 A small internal audit team is in place comprising of the Head of Audit and 
Investigations, Senior Auditor and Auditor.  Our review confirmed that the 
team effectively deploy their resources to get a balance between planned 
audit work and more reactive work such as investigations and advice. This 
enable the Head of Audit and Investigations to provide an Annual Opinion in 
line with the PSIAS requirements. The Head of Audit and Investigations also 
has an operational role in a number of other areas of work with some 
examples being safeguarding and data protection.  Where this is the case the 
Head of Audit and Investigations would not be involved in any audit of the 
service area and would in affect become an auditee who would receive the 
final report. This creates an element of independence in the process. Whilst 
by no means essential, consideration could be given to developing a 
reciprocal arrangement with another local authority internal audit team who 
could audit areas where there could be a perceived conflict of interest.  This 
would ensure true independence between the internal audit team and any 
other duties which they may have operational involvement in.   

 
 

Page 47



P a g e  | 6 
External Peer Review of Hyndburn Borough Council Internal Audit Service – Nov 2022 

 

2050 Other Assurance Providers 

 
3.11 The Head of Audit and Investigations will consider other forms of assurance, 

where known, as part of the internal audit planning process.  However, in 
many ways this is reliant on Heads of Services informing Internal Audit that 
work has been undertaken such as peer reviews, external inspections etc. 
The Head of Audit and Investigations is currently raising the profile of this 
need across Heads of Services and we support this initiative. With effective 
assurance mapping in place it will further ensure that audit resource is aligned 
to the areas of highest risk on the internal audit plan.  

 

1210 Technical Training and Development   

 
3.12 The internal audit team has considerable experience and the Head of Audit 

and Investigations is fully qualified.  There may be scope to further develop 
the Audit Committee through additional training and development to ensure 
that they are in the best position to support the Internal Audit Team and also 
the overall governance framework across the Council. Various briefings and 
training sessions have been arranged for Audit Committee members over the 
years however, these are not routine or form part of an agreed work program. 
We understand that the Audit Committee have recently undertaken a self-
assessment on their effectiveness and this would be an opportune time to 
work with the Committee to identify any training needs and ensure that 
provision is made.   

 

PSIAS Action Table 
 

3.13 The PSIAS action table details suggested actions to improve the service, its 
status or impact and quality of the service provided. The points raised in 3.8 to 
3.12 above are contained in this action table at Appendix C. 

 

Thankyou 
 

3.14 The Peer Review Team would like to express their thanks to Management, 
Heads of Service, Chair of Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Team at 
Hyndburn Council for all the help afforded to the Peer Review Team during 
the course of the review. 

Page 48



P a g e  | 7 
External Peer Review of Hyndburn Borough Council Internal Audit Service – Nov 2022 

 

Appendix A 
 

Review Team 

 
Joanne Billington 
 
Until recently, Joanne had been the Head of Audit at Wyre Council for over 13 years, 
with over 20 years of Internal Audit experience. In June 2021, she took on the role of 
Governance and Business Support, which oversees a number of support services 
which include HR, Legal, Procurement, Health and Safety, Audit and Risk 
Management, Insurance, Elections and Democratic Services. She holds both the   
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors qualification and a Qualification in Internal 
Audit Leadership. 
 
Tracy Greenhalgh 
 
Tracy is a fully qualified member of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors and 
received a commendation in her MSc in Audit Management and Consultancy and a 
merit in her MSc Counter Fraud and Counter Corruption.   Tracy has over twenty 
years internal audit experience in the local government sector and is currently Head 
of Audit and Risk at Blackpool Council. Tracy’s oversees the delivery of the audit 
plans across the full range of Council services and eight wholly owned companies.  
Her wider portfolio includes responsibility for counter fraud, risk management, 
insurance, business continuity, emergency planning and health and safety.  
 

 
 
 

Page 49



P a g e  | 8 
External Peer Review of Hyndburn Borough Council Internal Audit Service – Nov 2022 

 

Detailed Assessment 

Appendix B 

 
 

 
 
 

PSIAS 

Ref 

 

C
o
n
fo

rm
s
 

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 

c
o
n
fo

rm
s
 

D
o
e
s
 

n
o
t 

c
o
n
fo

rm
 

 
 
 
 

Comments 

 Purpose & positioning  

1000  Remit X    

1000  Reporting lines X    

1110  Independence X    

2010  Risk based plan X    

2050  Other assurance 
providers 

X    

 Structure & resources  

1200  Competencies X    

1210  Technical training & 
development 

X    

1220  Resourcing X    

1230  Performance 
management 

X    

1230  Knowledge 

management 

X    

 Audit execution  

1300  Quality Assurance & 

Improvement 
Programme 

X    

2000  Management of the 
IA function 

X    

2200  Engagement 
planning 

X    

2300  Engagement 
delivery 

X    

2400  Reporting X    

2450  Overall opinion X    

 

 
Conforms X Partially 

Conforms 

 Does Not 
Conform 

 

Page 50



  

 
 

Hyndburn Borough Council Internal Audit Service – PSIAS Action Table Appendix C 
 

The following points for consideration to develop the Audit Function arise from the review undertaken: 
 

 

PSIAS Ref 
 

Report ref 
 

Point For Consideration 
 

Responsible 
 

Action 

Remit 
 

1000 

3.8 In accordance with best practice, internal audit staff 
should formally acknowledge acceptance of the 
Internal Audit Code of Ethics periodically. 

Head of Audit and 
Investigations  

Accepted.  

Purpose and 
Positioning 

 
1000 

3.9 Consideration should be given to implementing the 
suggested best practice for Audit Committees set 
out in the CIPFA Position Statement (2022). This 
includes ensuring that the Committee meet at least 
four times are year and are supported by two 
independent members.  
 

Head of Audit and 
Investigations 

Accepted. 

Independence 
 

1110 

3.10 Where there could be a perceived conflict of interest 
consideration should be given to developing a 
reciprocal arrangement with another local authority 
to carry out the review.   

Head of Audit and 
Investigations 

Accepted. 

Other Assurance 
Providers 

 
2050 

 

3.11 The Head of Audit and Investigations should 
continue to embed assurance mapping by ensuring 
that Heads of Services report any external forms of 
assurance to them so that this can be factored into 
audit planning.   

Head of Audit and 
Investigations 

Accepted. 

P
age 51



  

Technical 
Training and 
Development  

 
1210 

3.12 Following the self-assessment of Audit Committee 
effectiveness consideration should be given to 
developing a more structured training programme to 
help ensure that members have appropriate skills 
and knowledge to challenge and consider the work 
of internal audit.   

Head of Audit and 
Investigations 

Accepted. 

 

P
age 52



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 06 March 2023 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT COMMITTEE TRAINING NEEDS 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To raise the issue for Audit Committee discussion on the training needs of the 

Committee for 2023/24 onwards following the Audit Committee Self-Assessment 
carried out by the Committee in 2022.  

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 Determines the way it wishes to progress the training requirements for members 
of the Committee. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy’s (CIPFA) publication “Audit 

Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2022 Edition” details 
guidance and best practice principals for Audit Committees. 

 
3.2 All members of the Committee have received their own personal copy of this 

publication and it supersedes the 2018 edition which all Committee members have 
previously received. 

 
3.3 The Audit Committee members carried out a self-assessment of effectiveness against 

the 2018 edition practical guidance which was reported to Audit Committee at its 
November 2022 meeting. It was agreed at that meeting that further discussion would 
take place at the March 2023 meeting in order to begin to set out training needs and 
priorities. 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7.



3.4 The External Peer Review of Internal Audit against the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards has made a recommendation relating to Audit Committee and its training 
needs. Recommendation 5 of Hyndburn External Peer Review Report of Internal Audit 
states “Following the self-assessment of Audit Committee effectiveness, consideration 
should be given to developing a more structured training programme to help ensure 
that members have appropriate skills and knowledge to challenge and consider the 
work of internal audit”. These skills and knowledge will also enable Audit Committee 
members to challenge and consider the work surrounding the Council’s Financial 
Statements and the work carried out by External Audit. Therefore there is an added 
requirement for training needs to be identified by the Audit Committee members. 

 
3.5 There are key questions which Audit Committee members must consider surrounding 

training needs: 
  i.) What training does the Committee as a whole believe would be 

beneficial? 
ii.) Are there training needs which are specific to individual members of the 

Audit Committee? 
iii.) Should there be mandatory training which must be carried out by every 

new Chair of the Committee? 
iv.) Should any of the Chair training extend to the Vice Chair of the 

Committee? 
v.) Should there be any training or specific information given to every new 

member that joins the Committee? 
vi.) Should there be an annual Training Needs report considered by Audit 

Committee? 
This list of questions is not designed to be exhaustive or the only areas that can be 
considered, however, they do pose key areas and points that the Committee must 
consider. 

 
3.6 Through the identification of training needs it is then possible to create a Training 

Needs document which will then form the basis of the expected training required for 
Audit Committee members together with any specific training that may be necessary. 
This is good practice and links back to the publication circulated to each of you prior to 
this meeting “Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police – 
2022 Edition”.  

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no alternative options as the Audit Committee must ensure that it is trained 

and holds the relevant necessary skills to carry out its functions and also challenge 
issues brought before it as required. 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on information from November 2022 

Audit Committee and afore mentioned CIPFA publication. 
 

Page 54



 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report at this stage as it is purely to 
instigate discussion / consideration of 
training needs. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are no legal or human rights 
implications arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

There are no direct risks from this report at 
this stage as it is allowing Committee to 
discuss / consider training needs and 
options. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
This report is produced as an aid to the 
Committee discussing / considering training 
needs and options. It does not create new or 
change existing policy hence why a 
Customer First Analysis is not required. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report. 

Page 55

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Progress Report

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 8.



23 February 2023 2

1. Audit Progress
2. National Publications

P
age 58



Section 01:
Audit Progress

P
age 59



23 February 2023 4

Audit Progress

Purpose of this report
This report provides the Audit Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

Audit progress
2020/21 financial statements audit
Our audit of the Authority’s 2020/21 financial statements cis substantially complete. Finalisation of the audit is subject to the resolution of a small number of queries in relation to infrastructure assets. 
Committee Members will recall the national, technical accounting issue in relation to the accounting for infrastructure assets. Since the last meeting of the Audit Committee, the Department for Levelling Up, 
Housing and Communities (DLUHC) issued a statutory override, which provides a temporary solution up to the 2024/25 financial year. CIPFA released updated guidance based on the statutory override on 11 
January 2023. The Authority’s finance team has reviewed the updated guidance and has updated the financial statements for the new guidance. We are in the process of completing our audit on this final 
area.

We will report the results of our work in our follow up letter, which will be provided to committee members at the conclusion of our audit. 

2020/21 work on the Authority’s arrangements to deliver value for money
We are completing our fieldwork on the arrangements for the 2020/21 financial year, and intend to report the findings from our work on the Authority’s value for money arrangements in out Auditor’s Annual 
Report. This work focuses on following up on significant weaknesses identified as part of the 2019/20 value for money work.

2021/22 financial statement audit
Our audit of the Authority’s 2021/22 financial statements has progressed, with the planning aspects and the interim audit having been completed. We have been unable to progress with the fieldwork of the 
audit due to the financial statements and supporting working papers not being available in line with agreed timeframes. Therefore after discussions with the authority’s finance team, we have programmed our 
fieldwork to commence in September 2023.   

P
age 60



Section 02:
National Publications

P
age 61



6

National publications

Publication/update Key points

Financial Reporting Council (FRC)

1 FRC Major Local Audit Inspection Report Outcome of the FRC inspection of audit quality from 2020/21 audits

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountability (CIPFA)

2 Insourcing in the Public Sector: A Practical Guide (2022 
edition) Guidance for practitioners

3 CIPFA Bulletin 12 Accounting for Infrastructure Assets 
Temporary Solution

Covers the issues to be considered regarding the temporary solution for the accounting and reporting issues relating to infrastructure 
assets

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd

4 Directory of Auditor Appointments from 2023/24 Auditor appointments for PSAA opted-in bodies

5 Publication of the 2022/23 fee scale External audit fees for 2022/23

P
age 62



NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
Financial Reporting Council

7

1. FRC Major Local Audit Inspection Report - October 2022

The FRC is responsible for monitoring the quality of the audits of the largest health and local 
government entities (called Major Local Audits or MLAs). They do this by annually inspecting  a 
sample of MLAs from each of the audit firms who deliver this work. In their most recent 
publication, they reported on their review of 20 MLAs, three of which related to Mazars. The 
ICAEW also reviewed 17 non-MLAs (none from Mazars).

Overall, the FRC found that the number of audits categorised as good or limited improvements 
required has remained consistent with the prior year. However, there was an increase in the 
number of audits assessed as requiring significant improvements and they deemed this as 
unacceptable. 

For Mazars, the FRC found that all 3 2021.22 files reviewed met the expected standards.
This was the second successive year of 100% compliance for Mazars. 
Whilst the sample size is small and focused on the higher risk audits, these strong outcomes  
reflect the investment we have made in people, technical expertise, specialists (such as 
building an in-house valuation team) and strengthening our audit methodology. Maintaining 
and improving audit quality is a key objective of the firm and our investment will continue. 

P
age 63



8

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA

2. Insourcing in the Public Sector: A Practical Guide (2022 edition), December 2022

The guide is an information source for public bodies to help widen their understanding of insourcing and support internal discussion on whether services should be brought back in-house and, if so, how they 
should be brought back in. In recent times, several outsourced arrangements have failed due to poor quality and unreliability of providers. It is important to note that while insourcing does not require a public 
body to run a full procurement process, it still needs to follow a process and undertake key steps (for example, TUPE and asset transfer) and is equally reliant on the public body having expert and skilled 
personnel to manage this.

This practical guide will support public sector practitioners in understanding key areas to focus on when considering insourcing as part of future delivery models.

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/i/insourcing-in-the-public-sector-a-practical-guide-2022-edition

3. CIPFA Bulletin 12 Accounting for Infrastructure Assets Temporary Solution, January 2023

The CIPFA Bulletin 12 – Accounting for Infrastructure Assets – Temporary Solution covers the issues to be considered regarding the temporary solution for the accounting and reporting issues relating to 
infrastructure assets.   

The objective of the bulletin is to provide guidance on the temporary solution for accounting for infrastructure assets, focussing on the reporting of the derecognition provisions where there is replacement 
expenditure and particularly for highways infrastructure assets

The temporary solution includes the Update to the Code and Specifications for Future Codes for Infrastructure Assets (Update to the Code) from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2025 which features a temporary 
relief not to report gross cost and accumulated depreciation for infrastructure assets and the statutory prescriptions from England and Wales and Scotland

The Bulletin also includes guidance on accounting for the pattern of consumption of economic benefits and service potential i.e. depreciation.

The Bulletin includes guidance on materiality, an overview of different elements of the temporary solution, the accounting requirements for derecognition including the statutory prescription, the impact on 
accounting policies and the reporting requirements for disclosure of gross cost and accumulated depreciation

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/cipfa-bulletins/cipfa-bulletin-12-accounting-for-infrastructure-assets-temporary-solutionP
age 64

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/i/insourcing-in-the-public-sector-a-practical-guide-2022-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/cipfa-bulletins/cipfa-bulletin-12-accounting-for-infrastructure-assets-temporary-solution


9

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd

4. Directory of Auditor Appointments from 2023/24, January 2023

PSAA has published its Directory of Auditor Appointments from 2023/24 following the completion of the 2022 procurement. The PSAA Board agreed the appointments at its meeting on 16 December 2022. 
Mazars will continue as the Authority’s external auditor from 2023/24.

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2023/01/directory-of-auditor-appointments-from-2023-24/

5. Publication of the 2022/23 fee scale, November 2022

PSAA has published the 2022/23 audit fee scale following consultation. Information on the fee scale and consultation is available. Most audit work under this fee scale will be undertaken from April 2023 
onwards. The Authority’s scale fee for 2022/23 is £82,498.

The 2022/23 fee scale is the last in the current appointing period which is under the 2017 audit contracts. New contracts will apply from the 2023/24 audit following a procurement during 2022. PSAA intend to 
consult on the fee scale for the 2023/24 audit in early autumn 2023.

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2022/11/news-release-publication-of-the-2022-23-fee-scale/

6. Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for local Authorities and Police (2022 edition), October 2022

Audit committees are a key component of governance. Their purpose is to provide an independent and high-level focus on the adequacy of governance, risk and control arrangements. They play an important 
role in supporting leadership teams, elected representatives, police and crime commissioners and chief constables. 

This edition updates CIPFA’s 2018 publication to complement the 2022 edition of the CIPFA Position Statement on audit committees. The suite of publications has separate guidance resources for audit 
committee members in authorities, members of police audit committees, and a supplement for those responsible for guiding the committee.

New aspects include legislation changes in Wales and new expectations in England following the Redmond Review. All authorities and police bodies are encouraged to use the publication to review and 
develop their arrangements in accordance with the Position Statement.

P
age 65

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2023/01/directory-of-auditor-appointments-from-2023-24/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/2022/11/news-release-publication-of-the-2022-23-fee-scale/


Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

www.mazars.com

Director: Mark Dalton

Mobile: 07795 506766

Email:  mark.dalton@mazars.co.uk

LinkedIn:
www.linkedin.com/company/Mazars
Twitter:
www.twitter.com/MazarsGroup
Facebook:
www.facebook.com/MazarsGroup
Instagram:
www.instagram.com/MazarsGroup
WeChat:
ID: Mazars

Contact Follow us:

Director: Daniel Watson

Mobile: 07909 985324

Email:  daniel.watson@mazars.co.uk

P
age 66


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of the Last Meeting
	3. Audit Plan 2022/23 Progress Update
	4. Follow Ups Update
	5. Annual Internal Audit Plan 2023/24
	Plan Cover  Preface 2023-24
	Copy of Audit Areas Planned for 2023-24

	6. External Peer Review of Internal Audit
	Final Peer Review Report - January 2023

	7. Audit Committee Training Needs
	8. External Audit Progress Report
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10


